
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 1 of 9 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The Mayor called the June 25, 2013, Regular and Committee of the Whole Meeting 
of the City Council to order at 7:00 P.M.  

 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
Roll call indicated the following Aldermen were in attendance: 
 
Present: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Thomas, Vlach, and Mayor Ragucci 
Absent: Sarallo 
 

Also in attendance were City Clerk D. Greco, City Manager J. Carpino, City Attorney 
R. Ramello, Public Services Director C. Ward, Finance Director A. Marrero, and 
Building and Zoning Administrator M. Dragan.   
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The Mayor led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

IV. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
None.  

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – CHANGES OR CORRECTIONS 

 

1. Regular Meeting Minutes Of  June 11, 2013 
 
Motion to approve the minutes of the June 11, 2013 Regular City Council and 

Committee of the Whole Minutes as presented was made by Alderman Shadley, 

and seconded by Alderman Przychodni. 

 

Ayes: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Thomas, and Vlach 

Nays: None 

 

Motion passed. 

 

VI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

None.  



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 2 of 9 

 
VII. ACTION ITEMS/CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. Payment Of City Bills: June 25, 2013 In the Amount of $220,876.34. 
2. Personnel And Payroll Report For May 2013 
3. Treasurer’s Report For May 2013 
4. Appointment Of Arnold Noble As Chair Of The Planning And Zoning 

Commission For A Term To Expire On June 1, 2014. 
5. Reappointment Of Bruce Almeroth To The Planning And Zoning Commission 

For A Term To Expire on June 1, 2016. 
6. Reappointment Of Steve Schneider To The Planning And Zoning Commission 

For A Term To Expire on June 1, 2016. 
7. Appointment Of Ann Ventura To The Planning And Zoning Commission For A 

Term To Expire on June 1, 2016. 
8. Reappointment Of Brian Brown To The Police Commission For A Term To 

Expire On June 1, 2016. 
9. Reappointment Of Bob Shanahan To The Police Commission For A Term To 

Expire On June 1, 2015. 
10. Approval Of A Request To Extend The Construction Schedule For The 

Oliviabrook PUD Until July 15, 2014.  
11. Approval Of Payout Number Three (3) To Harbour Contractor’s In The Amount 

Of $8,710.51 For The New Police Station And City Hall Renovation.  
12. Ordinance No. 13-34: An Ordinance Amending The Provisions Of Title XI 

(Business Regulations); Chapter 124 (Video Gaming); Subchapter 124.22 
(Number Of Licenses) Of The Code Of Oakbrook Terrace To Increase The 
Maximum Number Of Video Gaming Location Licenses And The Maximum 
Number of Video Gaming Terminal Licenses (Anyways, Inc. d/b/a Anyways 
Chicago Restaurant & Pub). 
 
The Mayor asked the Council if there were any items to be removed from the 
Consent Agenda. Hearing none, he asked for a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Motion to approve all the items contained on the Consent Agenda for June 

25, 2013 was made by Alderman Przychodni, and seconded by Alderman 

Esposito. 

 

Ayes: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Thomas, and Vlach 

Nays: None 

 

Motion passed. 



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 3 of 9 

 

VIII. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Resolution No. 13-16: A Resolution To Approve And Authorize The Execution 
Of A Strategic Advisor Agreement Between The City Of Oakbrook Terrace, 
Illinois, And Fidelity Consulting Group, LLC.   

 
Motion To Approve Resolution No. 13-16: A Resolution To Approve And 

Authorize The Execution Of A Strategic Advisor Agreement Between The 

City Of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois, And Fidelity Consulting Group, LLC. 

was made by Alderman Shadley and seconded by Alderman Przychodni. 

 
Ayes: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Vlach, and Mayor Ragucci 

Nays: Thomas 

 

Motion passed. 

 

IX. RECESS TO THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 

Motion to recess to the Committee of the Whole portion of this meeting was 

made by Alderman Shadley and seconded by Alderman Vlach.  
 
Ayes: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Thomas, and Vlach 

Nays: None 

  

The Regular Meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole. 

 

X. MAYOR RAGUCCI 

 

1. Ragucci said a shredding event was held on Saturday, June 22, 2013. Ragucci 
indicated the event had a decent turnout. Ragucci suggested holding another 
shredding event in two (2) years.  

2. Ragucci stated he looks forward to celebrating with everyone on Thursday, July 4, 
2013.  

3. Ragucci congratulated the Chicago Blackhawks on their Stanley Cup win.  
 

XI. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE CONSIDERATIONS 
 

1. Request From John Wendland For 17W642 Butterfield Road (Formerly Holiday 
Inn Reservation Center). 

 
Ragucci said the property currently receives water service from the Village of 
Oak Brook. John Wendland, the developer of the property, stated he provided all 
of his engineering estimates to Craig Ward regarding the charges associated with 



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 4 of 9 

hooking up to the City’s water system. Wendland noted that Ward found the costs 
reasonable. Wendland stated when discussions began regarding this project, the 
Village of Oak Brook requested that their connection be capped at the park-way, 
which is standard procedure. Wendland indicated the Village has now requested 
their connection be terminated in the middle of Butterfield Road. Wendland 
explained that in order to comply with this, Butterfield Road must be closed 
during the night so that all the work can proceed between the hours of 7PM and 
6AM. Wendland added that he will have to excavate Butterfield Road, cap it, re-
fill, re-stone, and re-black top it during this shortened time schedule.  
 
Wendland reported that due to the Village’s demand his cost has gone up to 
$88,000 more to connect to the City’s water system. Wendland stated that 
previously he agreed to pay a $20,000 premium to go to Oakbrook Terrace, and 
the City agreed to provide $15,000 for the connection costs. Wendland stated he 
attempted to negotiate with the Village of Oak Brook for a standard disconnect, 
but they denied this request. Wendland stated that he has already posted a bond 
with the Village of Oak Brook guaranteeing the performance of the work. 
Wendland said if the work is not done per the requirements of the Village of 
Oakbrook, the Village can cash the bond and do the work themselves at a higher 
cost.  
 
Wendland asked for the Council’s consideration in regards to assisting with the 
$35,000 in additional costs to connect to the City’s water system due to the 
Village of Oak Brook’s request. Carpino provided some background information 
on the project. Carpino said the property is located at the corner of Summit and 
Butterfield Road and three (3) new buildings will be constructed at this location. 
Carpino said the property is currently serviced by the Village of Oak Brook for 
water.  Carpino said the City approached Wendland about connecting to the 
City’s water system. Carpino said Wendland is requesting more money because 
Oak Brook is costing him more money to disconnect from their water line.  
 
Ward explained some of the benefits of the Wendland property connecting to the 
City’s water system. Ward said the connection will increase the City’s water 
revenue and provide an essential loop, where currently there is a dead-end. Ward 
asked if Wendland was guaranteed a permit from IDOT to do the work on 
Butterfield Road. Wendland replied no. Ward said he could see IDOT deeming 
this potential work unnecessary. Wendland said if the work along Butterfield 
Road is not done, he does not want anything. Wendland said if the Village of Oak 
Brook obtains a permit and he has to do the work then he is stuck. Wendland 
sighted the difficult logistics involved in capping the connection on Butterfield 
Road.  
 
Wendland said if the total cost to connect to the City’s water system is $88,000, 
then he is going to connect to the Village’s instead, in order to sidestep these 



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 5 of 9 

additional costs and the City can save their $15,000 original contribution. Thomas 
clarified that Wendland is requesting a total of $50,000 from the City which is 
comprised of the original $15,000 agreed to by the City plus the $35,000 cost 
associated with capping the Village of Oak Brook’s water system along 
Butterfield Road.  
 
Ragucci said he would like the City to have the Wendland property as a customer. 
However, Ragucci said before we jump ahead, why don’t we see if the work 
along Butterfield Road is necessary. Wendland asked if the City could move 
forward on this as a conditional item, because the Village of Oak Brook is 
requiring him to post a $35,000 bond. Ragucci clarified that Wendland is 
requesting an additional $35,000. Wendland said if IDOT refuses to permit work 
along Butterfield Road, then the $35,000 cost goes away.  
 
Ragucci asked how many companies provided estimates for this work. Wendland 
responded four (4). Vlach asked if it is economically feasible for the City to make 
this type of investment in the water system. Ward said the redundancy of the 
system is one (1) of the big benefits of this extension because it provides security 
and maintenance reliability, as well as the potential to service more customers 
down the line.  
 
Wendland said he intends to start on the water line this week. Ragucci said the 
Council cannot decide on a contribution amount now due to the unknown factors. 
Wendland said he cannot wait two (2) weeks or a month. Thomas said most of the 
Council members would probably favor providing an additional contribution, but 
that it has to be capped. Wendland indicated based upon the cap amount, he will 
make a decision on whether to go the City or the Village.  
 
Ragucci asked staff to put something together regarding this matter for the next 
meeting. Ward suggested setting up a special service area (SSA) similar to what 
the City did with the Premise Management and Dan Development properties 
where the owner pays the City back over a 20 year period. Marrero said property 
taxes would be assessed to repay the City. Wendland agreed with this approach. 
Ragucci asked if the Council would be comfortable with a SSA.  The Council 
concurred with the SSA approach to repay the City. Ragucci said staff will work 
on this during the week.  
 

2. Status Report: Oakbrook Terrace Square Shopping Center. 
 

Curt Hurst stated 100% of the infrastructure work is completed. Hurst reported 
that 80,000 square feet remains vacant. However, Hurst noted that of this 
approximately 40,000 square feet is already built and is in the final leasing phase. 
Hurst noted these leases will comprise four (4) tenants. Hurst said he could not 
disclose these potential tenants yet. Hurst said the Oakbrook Terrace Square 



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 6 of 9 

Shopping Center is 90% occupied. Hurst projected that these tenants will open in 
late fall, early December. Hurst indicated 43,000 square feet still needs to be 
occupied.  
 
Vlach asked if the Greater Oak Brook Chamber of Commerce has cooperated 
with filling the vacant spots. Hurst replied that he has not been actively engaged 
with the Chamber regarding this matter. Carpino said the City is currently 
working with the Chamber to relocate a couple hundred employees to two (2) 
floors Park View Plaza. Carpino noted that the Chamber focuses more upon office 
space than retail.  
 
Thomas asked if the proposed tentative tenants are retail. Hurst replied three (3) 
are the tenants are retail and one (1) is not. The Council thanked Hurst for his 
report.  
 

3. Intergovernmental And Permanent Easement Agreement Between The City Of 
Oakbrook Terrace And The Oakbrook Terrace Fire Protection District For The 
Relocation Of The Tornado Warning System. 

 
Carpino said Ward discovered after plotting out the new buildings that the tornado 
warning siren could not remain at its current location and would need to be 
relocated. Carpino said the City asked the Oakbrook Terrace Fire Protection 
District if the siren could be relocated on their property. Carpino noted the 
Oakbrook Terrace Fire Protection District agreed to relocate the siren on their 
property through a permanent easement agreement. Carpino indicated the City 
would receive the same coverage with the relocation of the siren. Thomas asked if 
the Public Services Facility was too remote of a location for the siren. Ward 
replied yes as well as an access problem. The Council concurred to place this item 
on the next consent agenda.  

 
Carpino added he has been in discussions with a company called Code Red which 
would alert all the residents of pending storms. Carpino explained residents could 
subscribe to this service and would receive a warning if a storm was approaching 
via their home and or cellular number.   
 

4. Continued Discussion Of The Replacement of Chipper and T-6 450 One-Ton 
Dump Truck. 

 
Ragucci said at the last meeting Sarallo had some questions regarding these 
equipment purchases. Ragucci stated that Sarallo met with Carpino, Ward, and 
himself regarding this matter. Ragucci said all of Sarallo’s questions were 
answered. The Council concurred to approve these purchases during the 
reconvened meeting.  
 



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 7 of 9 

5. Continued Discussion Of The Proposed Code Amendment For Traffic 
Regulations. 

 
Dragan stated she revised the proposed code amendment based upon the 
discussions from the June 11, 2013 meeting. Dragan said if the Council favors the 
proposed code amendment, then the City Attorney should be directed to prepare 
an ordinance accordingly. The Council directed the City Attorney to prepare the 
code amendment ordinance for the next consent agenda.  
 

6. Consideration Of July 4th Sponsorships – Christopher B. Burke Engineering, LTD 
and Luxury Nails. 
 
Ragucci asked the Council to consider the sponsorships from the two (2) 
businesses. Ragucci thanked the businesses for their donations. Ragucci said the 
City received a total $21,450 in donations for the July 4th celebration, which is 
more than last year. The Council concurred to place these sponsorships on the 
next consent agenda. 

 
7. Auditing Services Proposal For The Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2013. 

 
Marrero referenced her memorandum in the agenda packet recommending Wolf 
and Company for auditing services for FY 2013. Marrero noted Wolf and 
Company has been the City’s auditor for 13 years. Marrero said Wolf and 
Company is very professional and pleasant to work with. Marrero said Wolf and 
Company’s proposal increased 3% over last year. The Council concurred to place 
this item on the next consent agenda.  

 
XII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

Vlach said the City-wide garage sale was a success with several more participants 
than last year. Vlach suggested that new garage sale signs be made for next year with 
better lettering. Vlach said the black signs with the gold lettering are difficult to see 
from the road.  Ward said he will work with the Special Events Coordinator regarding 
this matter.  
 

XIII. CITY MANAGER CARPINO 

 

Carpino said the City is working with the Greater Oak Brook Chamber to relocate 
approximately 200 employees to two (2) floors at Park View Plaza. Carpino said the 
City is prepared to offer some incentives on permit fees to this possible tenant. 
Carpino said this relocation will help the Oakbrook Terrace Park District because 
these employees could use the Fitness Center. Carpino added that the possible tenant 
is in discussions with the proposed Gardner School, which will be located at the 
former Holiday Inn Reservation property on Butterfield Road.   



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 8 of 9 

 
Carpino said the demolition will begin tomorrow for the Building and Zoning house 
and the single family rental. Carpino said the City is awaiting the final pricing for the 
new Police Station and City Hall renovation from Harbour Contractors. Carpino 
explained the City will be able to review the wish-list and determine what to keep and 
what to remove. Carpino projected that in August bids will issued for the project and 
he hopes to break ground for the project in September or October.   
 
Carpino said at the next meeting, Lumquest will make a presentation to the Council 
discussing the results of their street lighting audit. Carpino noted that some state 
grants may be available to defray a portion of the cost of the residential street lighting 
program. Carpino said during the presentation, Lumquest is going to illustrate 
strategically where the lights should be located.  
 
Carpino said over the weekend the City’s police officers assisted the Village of Oak 
Brook’s police department during a robbery at a jewelry store at the Oak Brook Mall.  
 

XIV. CITY ATTORNEY R. RAMELLO 

 
None.  
 

XV. CITY CLERK GRECO 

 

None.  
 

XVI. RECONVENE THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Motion to reconvene was made by Alderman Shadley, and seconded by 

Alderman Thomas.  

 
Ayes: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Thomas, and Vlach 

Nays: None 

 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council reconvened. 

 

XVII. OLD BUSINESS 

 

1. Ordinance No. 13-32: An Ordinance Approving And Ratifying The Issuance Of A 
Purchase Order To Currie Motors Frankfort, Inc. For A 2013 Ford F-450 Dump 
Truck For The City Of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 

 

Motion To Approve Ordinance No. 13-32: An Ordinance Approving And 

Ratifying The Issuance Of A Purchase Order To Currie Motors Frankfort, 

Inc. For A 2013 Ford F-450 Dump Truck For The City Of Oakbrook 



CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013  

 

Page 9 of 9 

Terrace, Illinois was made by Alderman Shadley and seconded by Alderman 

Thomas.  

 

Ayes: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Thomas, and Vlach 

Nays: None 

 

Motion passed.  

 

2. Ordinance No. 13-33: An Ordinance Approving And Ratifying The Issuance Of A 
Purchase Order To Alexander Equipment Company, Inc. For A 2013 Morbark 
Beever M18R-SA Wood Chipper For The City Of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 

 
Motion To Approve Ordinance No. 13-33: An Ordinance Approving And 

Ratifying The Issuance Of A Purchase Order To Alexander Equipment 

Company, Inc. For A 2013 Morbark Beever M18R-SA Wood Chipper For 

The City Of Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois was made Alderman Przychodni and 

seconded by Alderman Esposito.  

 

Ayes: Esposito, Przychodni, Shadley, Thomas, and Vlach 

Nays: None 

 

Motion passed.  
                                                               

ADJOURN 

 

Motion to adjourn was made by Alderman Shadley, and seconded by Alderman 

Thomas at 7:44P.M. 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Submitted, 
 
 
Aileen Haslett 
Recording Secretary 


